Thomas Memorial Library Board of Trustees Minutes of meeting: Thursday, January 21, 2010 @ 6:30 P.M.

In Attendance:

Robert Chatfield, *Chair* Ed Nadeau, *Secretary* Virginia Cantara, Jennifer Healy, Nancy Marshall, Michael Moore, and Nancy O'Sullivan, *Trustees* Jay Scherma, *Library Director*

Absent: (none)

Agenda:

1. Call to order: 6:35 P.M.

Rob Chatfield

- 2. Welcome new Trustees: Jennifer Healy & Michael Moore
- 3. Approval of Meeting Minutes:
 - Motion:Accept minutes of the December 17, 2009 meeting.Result:Unanimously approved
- 4. Library Director's Report (November & December) Jay Scherma

5. Old Business:

- A. Joint meeting with TMLF & fund raising consultant recap:
 - The general reaction to this meeting was favorable and viewed as a useful exercise.
- B. Public Awareness Update:
 - The public awareness program to educate the Cape Elizabeth community on the Library Study Report and Recommendations is "on hold". It was our understanding that the previous Town Council had given us the "go ahead" based on a report on the town website following the October 14th, 2009 meeting of the council. However, when a DRAFT press release launching the public awareness program was shared with the Town Manager for review, he informed us that we had not yet been given direction by the council to proceed. (see http://www.capeelizabeth.com/tcminutes/2009/20091014.pdf and http://www.capeelizabeth.com/news/2009/tml_study_report2.html
 - A workshop with the Town Council is scheduled for February 4 @ 7:00 to bring everyone up to speed and, particularly, to orient the new members of the Council.

Motion: Form a subcommittee to develop the presentation materials for the workshop, and suggest logical next steps. Including, authority to:

- proceed with a Public Education and Awareness Program
- request from Casaccio Architects the components and cost of a next level design
- explore a fundraising study and potential for success
- Result: Unanimously approved
- The Subcommittee consists of: Nancy M., Michael, Ed, Rob, and Jay. Other Trustees are welcome to participate if they are available.
- Subcommittee will meet Tuesday, January 26 @ 3:30.
- C. Recycling / trash bin: This issue originally involved the Recycling Committee's request to the Board of Trustees to consider the addition of recycling bin in front of the library. The recycling bin was installed and ultimately removed. At this point it is apparent that the replacement of the trash bin is an issue for the Director of Public Works and the Library Director to resolve.

Thomas Memorial Library Board of Trustees Minutes of meeting: Thursday, January 21, 2010 @ 6:30 P.M.

6. New Business:

- A. Review policies and responsibilities of boards and commissions:
 - Jay reviewed with us the recently redistributed materials regarding policies and responsibilities.
- B. Election of officers for 2010:
 - Rob Chatfield, elected Chair
 - Ed Nadeau, elected Secretary
- C. Circulation policy revisions:

Proposed revisions to the Circulation policy are attached.

Motion:To recommend proposed revisions to the Town Council for approval.Result:Unanimously approved

7. Parked items: (none)

- 8. Meeting: Our next meeting is scheduled for Thursday, February 18, @ 6:30 P.M.
 - **Note**: This meeting is during school vacation week. Please inform the Secretary if you are unable to attend.
- **9. Adjournment:** 8:35 P.M.

TML Rules				MINERVA Rules				Proposed TML R		
		# of	Renewal Loan			# of	Renewal			#
Item	Loan period	Renewals	Period	Item	Loan period	Renewals	Loan Period	Item	Loan period	Rene
Books /										
Kits	2 weeks	2	2 weeks	Books / Kits	3 weeks	1	2 weeks	Books / Kits	3 weeks	-
Fat Books	3 weeks	2	3 weeks	Fat Books	3 weeks	1	2 weeks	Fat Books	3 weeks	-
New Books	2 weeks	1	2 weeks	New Books	3 weeks	1	2 weeks	New Books	3 weeks	-
New Fat				New Fat				New Fat		
Books	3 weeks	1	3 weeks	Books	3 weeks	1	2 weeks	Books	3 weeks	-
Audio										
Books	2 weeks	2	2 weeks	Audio Books	3 weeks	1	2 weeks	Audio Books	3 weeks	-
Fat Audio				Fat Audio				Fat Audio		
Books	3 weeks	2	3 weeks	Books	3 weeks	1	2 weeks	Books	3 weeks	-
New Audio				New Audio				New Audio		
Books	2 weeks	1	2 weeks	Books	3 weeks	1	2 weeks	Books	3 weeks	-
New Fat										
Audio				New Fat				New Fat		
Books	3 weeks	1	3 weeks	Audio Books	3 weeks	1	2 weeks	Audio Books	3 weeks	
Music CDs	2 weeks	2	2 weeks	Music CDs	1 week	1	1 week	Music CDs	1 week	
Magazines				Magazines				Magazines		
(Adult)	1 week	2	1 week	(Adult)	1 week	1	1 week	(Adult)	1 week	
Magazines				Magazines				Magazines		
(Children)	2 weeks	2	2 weeks	(Children)	1 week	1	1 week	(Children)	1 week	
Videos										
(VCR &		-		Videos (VCR				Videos (VCR		
DVD)	1 week	2	1 week	& DVD)	1 week	1	1 week	& DVD)	1 week	1
Video		6		Video		_		Video		
(Series)	3 weeks	2	3 weeks	(Series)	1 week	1	1 week	(Series)	3 weeks	
New										
Videos				New Videos				New Videos		
(VCR &	1	4	1	(VCR &	1	4	1	(VCR &	1	
DVD)	1 week	1	1 week	DVD)	1 week	1	1 week	DVD)	1 week	
Now				Novy Vide -				NovyVidee		
New Video		4	2	New Video	1	4	1	New Video	2	
(Series)	3 weeks	1	3 weeks	(Series)	1 week	1	1 week	(Series)	3 weeks	
No limits on Holds Placed at one time				No limits on Holds Diacod at one time				Limit of 15 Holds Dissed		
No limits on Holds Placed at one time				No limits on Holds Placed at one time				Limit of 15 Holds Placed		

These proposed changes are recommended to avoid confusion for patrons by bringing local circulation rules into harmony with those governing MINERVA Interlibrary Loans. It is noted that adopting these new rules may result in a reduction in Circ stats.

Purpose: Circulation policies are necessary to enable the maximum use of available materials for the public at large. The Thomas Memorial Library staff recognizes that part of their role as stewards is to ensure the most responsible use of materials for everyone. As such, no special privileges will be granted to any individual or class of patron.

RESIDENTS

Library services are free to all Cape Elizabeth residents, property owners, any student duly enrolled in the Cape Elizabeth school system, and all town employees, including school faculty and staff. Borrowing privileges will be granted to residents five (5) years old and older.

NON-RESIDENTS

Non-residents will pay a nonrefundable annual membership fee equal to the current per capita cost per resident as set by the Town Council. They will enjoy all the privileges and services provided by the library except for reserving library facilities. Non-resident proprietors of local businesses will be given a waiver of the annual membership fee upon request. Adult children of Cape Elizabeth residents who live in a neighboring town must adhere to the regular non-resident policy stated above.

Temporary summer residents will pay a non-refundable quarterly fee equal to 25% of the regular nonresident fee, plus a refundable fifty-dollar (\$50.00) deposit.

The Library Director reserves the right to waive a non-resident fee.

CIRCULATING COLLECTION

Registration at the Thomas Memorial library allows patrons in good standing to borrow, renew and reserve books, periodicals, and audiovisual materials.

Reference materials do not circulate, but photocopies of reference items may be made at the going copying rate set by the Town. Copying costs for the first ten (10) pages are waived, and charged at a reduced rate per copy after that. The most current issue of adult periodicals does not circulate.

REGISTRATION AND LIBRARY CARDS

Patron registration must be done in person at the Library. Adult patrons are defined as any patron in ninth (9th) grade and older. Applicants will be expected to produce proof of identity and residency.

Identity may be established using any of the following documents containing photographs and physical information:

U.S. Passport, valid state driver's license, state or federal ID card, school ID card, U.S Military IDs.

For those under 18 who cannot present a document listed above, the following documents will be accepted: School record or report card, Clinic or Doctor Record, or a Day-care/Nursery School Record.

Residency may be established using any of the above documents plus: Deeds, Rental Agreements or Utility bills addressed to the applicant at a local street address.

All children between the ages of five (5) and through the completion of eighth (8th) grade must have a parent or guardian's signature on his or her registration card. Parents should understand that while their signatures do not compromise the Library's policy on confidentiality they remain fiscally responsible for all damages or losses incurred by the minor.

Patrons are given a plastic library card that serves as their key to all library services:

- 1. Adult patrons must present a library card or photo ID to proceed with all circulation transactions. Children must present a library card or one of the ID documents specified above.
- 2. The library will assume that any person presenting a library card is authorized to use it, unless that card has been reported lost or stolen. Proper ID will be required in order to replace a card that has been reported lost or stolen.
- 3. Upon applying for a library card, all cardholders must sign the following statement:

I agree:

- To observe all rules and policies of the library, to be responsible for all materials borrowed with my card, and to pay all fines and fees associated with its use.
- To report the loss, theft, or abuse of my card immediately. I understand that I am responsible for any items checked out on my card prior to it being reported lost.
- To report changes in my account information in a timely manner.
- That the library shall assume that any person presenting my library card is authorized to use it, unless I have reported the card lost or stolen.
- That I waive my rights of confidentiality whenever I allow another person to use my card.

BOOK DROP

A book drop is available for most returns when the library is not open. Patrons are asked to return items to the circulation desk during the library's open hours. Because they are easily damaged, audiovisual materials must be returned in person at the circulation desk and not in the book drop. Patrons will be held responsible for audiovisual items improperly returned via the book drop.

THOMAS MEMORIAL LIBRARY MATERIALS

BORROWING LIMITS

No limits will be placed on the number of items that may be borrowed at one time.

BORROWING PERIOD

Books and audio recordings are loaned for a period of (3) three weeks. Periodicals circulate for one (1) week. Most videos circulate for one (1) week. Videos that run over five (5) hours circulate for three (3) weeks. Music

recordings circulate for (1) one week.

RENEWALS

Renewals may be made by phone, or in person during regular Library hours, or online twenty-four hours a day, seven days a week. Reserved items will not be renewed and will accrue overdue fines. All circulating material may be renewed (1) one time. Books and audio books may be renewed for (2) two weeks. All periodicals, videos, and music recordings may be renewed for (1) one week. A patron may renew another family member's materials, subject to the library's policy governing confidentiality of patron records.

GRACE PERIOD

Overdue fines are charged only for days the library is open. There is a one-day grace period before fines begin to accrue.

OVERDUE CHARGES

Overdue fines for most materials are charged at the rate of ten cents (.10) per day per item with a maximum fine of six dollars (\$6.00) per item for adult patrons and five cents (.05) per day per item with a maximum fine of three dollars (\$3.00) per item for juvenile patrons. Overdue fines for video recordings are one dollar (\$1.00) per day per item with a maximum fine of ten dollars (\$10.00.)

LOST AND DAMAGED MATERIALS

When a patron damages material beyond repair, loses material, or does not return material, he or she must pay to replace the item(s). The Library reserves the right to purchase items in editions specific for library use. The charge will be the retail price of the material; all overdue fines on the material being paid for will be waived. The patron may keep the damaged material once it is paid for. As funds for lost items are immediately allocated for replacements to the collection, the library cannot refund monies paid for items found at a later date.

If no price is recorded for an item, staff will consult a reliable Internet source for the most current price. If an item is out of print, the patron will be charged according to the schedule of replacement charges for out of print items (see Appendix E.)

SUSPENSION OF LIBRARY PRIVILEGES

Borrowing privileges are suspended when fines reach \$6.00 for adult patrons, \$3.00 for children, or when materials have been overdue for two (2) months or more. For the purpose of this policy, all items not returned at the time a *Letter of Suspension* is issued shall be construed as "lost" and subject to replacement charges

Failure to pay for lost or damaged materials will result in the suspension of library privileges.

Delinquent borrowers may not borrow, renew, or reserve items or request interlibrary loans until materials are either returned and fines are paid or compensation for the materials is made.

CLAIMED RETURNED

In good faith, the Library allows patrons to claim up to (3) three items returned before borrowing privileges are suspended.

RESERVES

Patrons in good standing may reserve materials that are not immediately available. As soon as an item is available, the patron will be notified. Reserved materials will be held no more than (1) one week during which the Library will contact the patron via email and/or by phone (2) two times. Failure to pick up an item or to respond to the notification will result in the patron being removed from the reserve list for that item. Patrons may initiate a request for the item again. There is a maximum limit of (15) fifteen items that may be reserved at one time.

Patrons who are away from Cape Elizabeth for an extended period will be removed from reserve lists.

The Thomas Memorial Library will seek to facilitate the educational mission of the Cape Elizabeth schools by placing on in-house reserve topical materials related to a unit of study when specifically notified by a faculty member or librarian within the school system. Items on in-house reserve will be treated as reference materials. Requests for placing items on in-house reserve must be made a minimum of (2) two weeks in advance. Materials may be placed on in-house reserve for no more than (1) one school term.

PATRON REQUESTS FOR MATERIAL

The Library will consider for purchase any material requested by a patron that is not currently owned or on order. All such requests will be subject to the Library's Collection Development Policy

INTERLIBRARY LOAN MATERIALS

For items outside the scope of the library's collection, interlibrary loan is available. The library will make every reasonable effort to obtain these materials for all registered patrons in good standing. Patrons can place interlibrary loan requests directly online at the Library or on a home computer. Requests can also be made by phone or at the Library. The Thomas Memorial Library participates with numerous libraries around the state in the cooperative *Maine Info Net Electronic Resources Via Automation* project. The MINERVA consortium provides patrons with an easy-to-use catalog that is available over the Internet 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. The system makes it possible for a patron to directly access his or her borrower's record to check on due dates and fines, or to renew materials. MINERVA also provides users with a gateway to library catalogs around the state.

Items borrowed through the Maine Info Net (Minerva and INN-Reach) or from other libraries outside of the consortium are subject to policies set up by those institutions.

BORROWING LIMITS AND RESERVES

No limits will be placed on the number of items that may be borrowed at one time. There is a maximum limit of (15) fifteen items that may be reserved at one time.

BORROWING PERIOD

Recommended: 1/21/10

Minerva loans circulate for (3) three weeks, with the exception of all videos, periodicals, and music recordings, which circulate for one (1) week. INN-Reach loans circulate for (4) four weeks. All other loans circulate for a period predetermined by the lending institution.

RENEWALS

Reserved items will not be renewed. Renewal periods are set according to the policies of the Minerva Consortium or by the lending institution.

OVERDUE CHARGES

Overdue fines for Minerva and Inn-Reach items are charged at the rate of ten (10) cents per day per item for all patrons. There is a one-day grace period before fines begin to accrue. There are no overdue charges for items borrowed from institutions outside the consortium.

LOST AND DAMAGED MATERIALS

When a patron damages material beyond repair, loses material, or does not return material, he or she must pay to replace the item(s). For items in print, replacement costs are confirmed with the lending institution. For out of print items, replacement costs follow either follow a set schedule if they are loaned through Maine InfoNet (see Appendix E) or by the lending library, if loaned by a library outside of the consortium.

All such items must be paid for by a check made out to the lending library and given to the Thomas Memorial Library.

Failure to pay for lost or damaged materials will result in the suspension of library privileges.

Delinquent borrowers may not borrow, renew, or reserve items or request interlibrary loans until materials are either returned or compensation for the materials is made.